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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

July 22, 2013

Honorable Mayor and Councilmen
City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi

he governmental activities, the business-type
nd information of City of Bay St. Louis,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
activities, cach major fund, and the aggregate remainin
Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 26 /
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financtal statements are the responsibility of City
of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s management. Our '

statements based on our audit.

waiose standards require that we plan and perform the audit
the financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An
audit includes examining, on a tegf basis,tevidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statoments. An audit also includes aSsgssingt the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating™the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

by the Compiroller General of the Unit
to obtain reasonable assurance aboutssd

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi, as of September 30, 2012,
and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 22, 2013, on
our consideration of the City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
contro] over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s

discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 11 and 44 through 47 be

presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic

financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
2



essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
nformation for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s financial statements as a whole. The combining non-major
fund financial statements on pages 48-49 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of
the financial statements. These statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures apphed in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additionat procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all materizl Tespects in relation to
the financial statements as a whole.

The Surety Bond Schedule on page 50 is other supplemeptalNipformation that is required by the Mississippi
State Auditor’s Office and is presented as other supplemental¥information that is not subject to auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial stater ad accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Wright, Ward, Hatten & Guel, PLLC _
Gulfport, Mississippi :
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Introduction

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the City of Bay Saint Louis (“the City™)
activities and financial performance provides an introduction to the financial statements of the
City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. The information contained in this
Management’s Discussion and Analysis has been prepared by management and should be
considered in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto, which follow this

section.

The components of the annual financial report include:

» Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
¢ Basic Financial Statements
¢ Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

The MD&A, a component of RSI, infroduces the basic financial statements and provides an
analytical overview of the City’s financial activities, This MD&A provides some comparisons
with the previous year.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilitig”
this amount unrestricted net assets is $2,8

* The total net assets decreased by $2, 3
$261,509. Of this amount $3 135 :,! s associated with governmental and $1,911,771
with business-type activitie gétively. This decrease is due mainly to the closeout of
ongoing Katrina cap1ta1 § prOJcts funded by FEMA and depreciation expense in
the Utility fimd. 4 %

combined ending fund balaces of $2,618, 301 a decrease of $1,547,191 which includes a
prior period adjustment of $31,362.

¢ At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$791,019 or 10.1% of total general fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The City’s basic financial statements comprise the following clements:

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets.



CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2012

Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a uwseful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change oceurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include
general government, public safety, public works, and culture and recreation. The major business-
type activitics of the City of Bay Saint Louis include providing water, sewer, natural gas and
garbage collection services to the residents of the City of Bay Saint Louis.

‘The government-wide statements can be found on pag;g%B of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

to maintain control over resources that have

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is u
; The City, like other state and local

been segregated for specific activities o
governments, uses fund accounting no;ﬁwgnly ¢ and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements but also tgfheR coritrol and manage money for particular purposes or
to show it is meeting legal responsib iti YSIng certain taxes, grants, and other money. All of
the funds of the City can be dividetkinth, two categories:

e  Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal vear. Such information may be
usetul in evaluating a government’s near term [inancing requirements.

In fiscal year 2012, the City maintains five individual governmental funds. Tnformation
is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General
fund, Disaster Recovery fund, and the CDBG Grant fund, which are considered major
funds and the other governmental funds for the purpose of consistency.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-17 of this
report,



CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSTPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)
* Proprietary Funds
The City maintains two proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-20 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. Refer
to Note 1 i the financial statements for more detailed information on the elements of the
financial staternents.

Other Informuation

In addition to the basic financial statements and accorrgp"aﬁqying notes, this report also presents
certain other supplementary information. The budgeg€otparisons for the general fund and the
special revenue funds are presented immediately after the Digic financial statements as required
supplementary information. 4 ‘

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the fiscal year ended Septen a*’ 2412, the City Council adopted amendments to the
budget. As the impact of the sluggi®h egdhiomy*continued, budgeted general fund revenues were
decreased by $2,097,012. The prepetty, tax budget was reduced $281,782. Sales tax budgeted
revenue was decreased by $68,259 di t& smaller than anticipated sales tax receipts. The budget
for intergovernmental revenuesiwas dgereased $1,559,411 due to accounting for these receipts in
another fund. The budget for 13/;% s and permits was decreased by approximately $17,550 due
to a decrease in building permit revenues as new construction fefl. Gaming budgeted revenues
were decreased $162,577 due to the decrease in projected gaming revenue. Miscellaneous
revenue increased due to the inerease in other revenue sources. To partially offset the decreased
revenues, total budgeted expenditures were decreased by $1,723,274 mainly by reducing
expenditures in general government, public safety and streets and public properties. Additionally,
the budget for transfers out was decreased by $974,079 from the water and sewer fund,



CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Table 1 below presents the City’s condensed statement of net assets as of September 30, 2012
derived from the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
Current and other assets $ 5,049,803 § 7622838 § 878,024 $§ 1,343,810 § 5927827
Noncurrent assets 55,473,955 55,012,006 62,788,649 63,924,244 118,262,604
Total assets 60,523,758 62,634,844 63,666,673 65,268,054 124,190,431
Other liabilities 2,752,931 3,839,255 872,120 911,579 3,625,051
Long-term Habilities 1,065,442 1,341,243 1,442 779 1,790,097 2,508,221
Total Habilities 3,818,373 5,180,498 2,314,899 2,701,676 6,133,272
Net assets:
Invested in capital _
assets, net of related debt 54,057,713 533 %81 60,956,341 61,617,655 115,014,054
Restricted 179,435 2487 - - 179,435
Unrestricted 2,468,237 395,433 048,723 2,863,670
Total net assets $ $ 61,351,774 § 62,566,378 $ 118,057,159

56,705,385

At September 30, 2012, the ¢ Ssgxceeded liabilities by $118,057,159. By far the largest
portion of the City’s net assets® ) 7%) teflects its investment in capital assets, less any related debt
used to acquire or construct those%qsséfis. The unrestricted net assets of $2,863,670 can be used to

finance government operations.

Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the net assets is restricted for various purposes. Please refer to Note 8 on page 37 for
more detail.

The remaining portion of net assets is unrestricted, which can be used to finance government
operations.

Table 2 presents the City’s condensed statement of activities for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2012, as derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities.



CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Government-wide Financial Analysis (Continued)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services § 275206 5 354904 § 2593071 § 2,739945 § 2868277
Operating grants 495,040 722,668 - - 495,040
Capital grants 2,741,613 16,118,122 - - 2,741,613
Total program revenues 3,511,859 17,195,694 2,593,071 2,739,945 6,104,930
General revenues
Property taxes 1,951,555 1,922,632 - 1,951,555
Sales taxes 1,134,718 1,109,791 - 1,134,718
Franchise taxes 361,287 363,949 - 361,287
Gaming revenue 2,278,922 2,379,547 - . 2,078,922
Interest earnings 4,591 652 419 5,243
Donations 350,150 ; - - 350,150
Lease revenue 77,119 " 5,031 . 77119
Other 368,432 %?‘*“,144 - 368,432
Total general revenues 6%@ % 6370574 652 419 6,507,426
Total revenues 10,538 63% s, 23,566,268 2,593,723 2,740,364 12,632,356
Program expenses -
General government 5, 2,056852 2,057,782 2,656,852
Public safety 362,535 3,176,472 3,362,535
Public works 693,060 2,869,035 - - 693,060
Culture and recreation 2,360,011 777,626 2,360,011
[nterest 53,516 84,716 - 53,516
Water, sewer and gas - - 5,730,369 6,000,046 5,730,369
Harbor - - 1,087 - 1,087
Total program expenses 9,125,974 8,965,631 5,731,456 6,000,046 14,857,430
Change before transfers 912,659 14,600,637 (3,137,733) (3,259,682) (2,225,074)
Transfers (1,225,962) (5,300,893) 1,225,962 5,300,893 -
Special item - SCDL loan forgiveness - 3,316,816 - 735,850 -
Change in net assets (313,303) 12,616,560 (1,911,771) 2,777,061 (2,225,074)
Beginning net assets, restated 57,018,688 44.837,786 63,263,545 59,789317 120,282,233
Ending net assets § 56705385 § 57454346 $ 61351774 § 62,566,378 § 118,057,159




CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as & useful measure of
a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the close
of the fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
$2,618,301 a decrease of ($1,547,191) in comparison with the prior year which includes a prior
period adjustment of ($31,362). 30% percent or $791,019 of this combined fund balance is
unassigned, while the remainder is restricted for capital projects, debt service, and police
vehicles. Approximately 11% or $276,621 of this combined fund balance is committed for
recreational activities and municipal reserves.

s  General Fund

he City. As a measure of the general
dsgigned fund balance to total fund
the general fund unassigned fund balance
penditures.

The general fund is the chief operating funde
fimd’s liquidity, it may be useful to

': for all of the expenditures and all of the federal
| Emergency Management Agency for the rebuilding and

&f Hurricane Katrina.

»  CDBG Grant Fund %%f
This fund is used by the City to account for all of the expenditures and all of the federal
money received from the Community Development Block Grant program that is for the
rebuilding and recovery efforts from the effects of Hurricane Katrina.

Proprietary Funds

The Utility fund had a decrease in total net assets of $2,641,093 at the end of the fiscal yedr in
comparison with the prior year which includes a prior period adjustment in the amount of
$157,636. This decrease is mostly due to depreciation of the utility system.

The Harbor fund had an increase in total net assets of $1,426,489 at the end of the fiscal year in
comparison with the prior year which includes a prior period adjustment in the amount of
$539,531. This increase is in capital assets, net of related debt from the construction in process of
the Harbor.



CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt Activity

Capital Asset Activity

At September 30, 2012, the City reported $55,467,443 in net capital assets for governmental
activitics and $62,744,138 in capital assets for business-type activities. This represents a
combined decrease of $717,863 in capital assets during the 2012 fiscal year. Additional
information on the City of Bay St. Louis’ capital assets can be found in Note 5: Capital Assets on

pages 31-32.
City of Bay St. Louis' Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
Land $ 1,116,633 $§ 1,116,633 $ - 3 - § 1,116,633
Buildings & Improvements 23,937,510 23,321,855 43,980 44,980 23,981,490
Machinery & Equipment 735,540 258,970 63,667 994,510
Infrastructure & Systems 22,544,549 %, 60,762,300 63,736,839 83,306,849
Vehicles ‘ 483,093 ® 10,393 10,393 493,486
Construction in progress 6,650,118 1,668,495 598,126 8,318,613
$ 62,744,138  § 64,454,005 $ 118,211,581

Total $ 55,467,443

Long-Term Debt Activity

Py

mformation on the City of Bay St. Fouis® long-term debt can be found in Note 6: Long-Term

At the end of the current ﬁs%ai wh(ﬁw had $3,521,582 in outstanding debt. Additional

Debt on pages 33-35 of this report.

City of Bay St. Louis' Outstanding Debt
General Obligation, Revenue Bonds and Other Loans

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
Bonds Payable ¥ L100,000 § 1437500 § - 3 - $ 1,100,000
Revenue Bonds - - 1,787,797 2,116,805 1,787,797
Capital Leases Payable 309,730 195,109 - - 309,730
Compensated Absences 280,260 310,663 43,795 47,528 324,055
Total § 1689990 $§ 1943272 $ 1831592 § 2,164333 § 3,521,582

10



CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Tconomie Outlook

With no significant planned changes in tax rates or in other forms of revenue subject to
adjusiment by the City, revenues are expected to remain flat. During fiscal 2013 and into the
foreseeable future, gaming revenues, which the city has relied on as a significant source of
operating revenue, is projected to remain flat. Sales tax revenue has increased with the addition
of a grocery store and redevelopment of the downtown beachfront area, but this increase is not
yet offsetting the decrease of gaming revenues. During fiscal 2013, the City of Bay Saint Louis is
operating on less gaming and sales tax than was collected 10 years ago.

Utility revenues for water and sewer have not changed in more than 15 years. It is becoming
difficult for the City to operate a utility enterprise on rates dating back to the 1990°s. Waste
waler treatment costs have increased significantly in the past two years.

Going into the 2014 fiscal year, City management is going to face the difficult issues of
identifying sources of cost savings, increasing revenues, or lowering the level of services
provided to the community.

Contact the City’s Financial Management

Questions about this report or requests for additional xﬁn‘j;izfonnation may be addressed to:

David Kolf, City Clerk
City of Bay Saint Louis, Mississippi
P.O. Box 2550

Bay Saint Louis, MS 39521
(228) 466-5446

11
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI

EXHIBIT A

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 652,736 3 665,366 3 1,318,102
Receivables, net 578,367 337,203 915,570
Due frorn other governments 2,737,723 - 2,737,723
Internal balances 533,949 (533,949) -
Inventory - 89,120 89,120
Prepaid insurance 192,664 42,000 234,664
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 354,364 278,284 632,648
Total current assets 3,049,803 878,024 5,927,827
Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 7,766,751 1,668,495 9,435,246
Other capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 47,700,692 61,075,643 108,776,335
Bond issuance costs, nat 6,512 44 511 51,023
Total noncurrent assets 55,473,955 62,788,649 118,262,604
Total assets 60,523,758 63,666,673 124,190,431
LIABILITIES ‘ "'
Current Liabilities f
Accounts payable and accrued expenses %&5 3 186,043 2,161,556
Rental Deposits . I'%Q00 - 17,000
Accrued interest K 18,979 21,949
Deferred revenues #132,900 - 132,900
Bonds payehle 347,500 355,000 702,500
Capital leases payable 80,144 - 80,144
Compensated absencas, current 196,504 33,813 230,717
Payable from restricted assets: )
Customer deposits - 278,285 278,285
Total cusrent liabilities \i 2,752,931 §72,14) 3,625,051
Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds payable, net of deferred loss on bond refunding 752,500 1,432,797 2,185,297
Capital leases payable 229,586 - 229,586
Compensated absences 83,356 9,982 93,338
Total long-term ligbilitics 1,065,442 1,442,779 2,508,221
Total liabilities 3,818,373 2,314,869 6,133,272
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 54,057,713 60,956,341 115,014,054
Restricted for:
Delbt Service 179,435 - 179,435
Unrestricted net assets 2,468,237 395,433 2,863,670
Total net assets $__ 56705385 8§ 61,351,774 § 118,057,159

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12
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FUND LEVEL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Sales taxes

Franchise taxes

Gaming receivable

Property tax

Court revenue

Other
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenditures
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Rental Deposits
Compensated absences
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues

Total liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Insurance
Restricted:
Debt Service
Public Safety Vehicles
Capital Outlay
Committed:
Recreational
Municipal Reserves
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

CITY OF BAY ST. LOUTS, MISSISSIPPI

EXHIBIT C

BAI.ANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Disaster Other
Recovery CDBG Grant  Governmental
General Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 360982 % 6,418 % 32,937 % 252399 3 652,736
176,026 - . - 176,026
95,685 - - - 95,685
158,986 - - - 158,986
21,697 - - - 21,697
109,185 - - - 109,185
16,788 - - . 16,788
325,853 2,330,709 81,161 - 2,737,723
476,402 15,502 - 57,457 549,451
192,664 - 192,664
347,334 7,030 354,364
$ 2,281,692 5 316,886 & 5,065,305
$ - $ 1,975,513
- 17,000
- 196,904
. 15,502
, - 242,085
i< 53 1,479,190 41,361 - 2,447,004
192,664 - - - 192,664
172,405 - - 64,487 236,892
174,929 - - - 174,929
- 873,439 72,737 - 946,176
24,222 - - - 24,222
- - - 252,399 252,399
791,019 - - - 791,019
1,355,239 873,439 72,737 316,886 2,618,301
§ 2,281,692 § 2352620 § 114,098 § 316,886 $§ 5,005,305

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT C-1

CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Total governmental funds balance (Exhibit C) $ 2,618,301

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated usefui lives and
reported as depreciation expense.

Governmental capital assets 65,527,730

Less: accumulated depreciation 10,060,287 ' 55,467,443
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the governmental funds as liabilities. (1,409,730}
Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the governmental funds as liabilities. j (83,356)

A,

Accrued interest not due and payable in the current period an -‘Ehereﬁ%@: reported in
the funds as a liability. A M {2,970}
Court receivables are other long-term assets tht are i%in the current period
to pay for expenditures and, therefore, are deferred i 109,185
Governmental funds report the effect o suagite. costs, discounts, premiums, and
similar items when debt is first is ireas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activigﬁ's. : 6,512
Net assets of governmental activitics (FHibit A) 3 56,705,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT D
CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPFI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Other
Disaster CDBG Grant  Governmental
General Fund  Recovery Fund Fund Funds Total
Revenues
Taxes:
Property § 1,951,555 § -8 - -8 1,951,555
Sales 1,134,718 - - - 1,134,718
Franchise 361,287 - - - 361,287
Licenses and permits 175,450 - - - 175,450
Intergovernmental 808,695 190,591 2,237,366 - 3,236,652
Fines and forfeits 109,820 - - - 109,820
Interest 2,073 - - 2,515 4,588
Lease revenue 77,119 “ - - 77,119
Gaming revenue 2,278,922 - - - 2,278,922
Donations 350,150 - - - 350,150
Miscellaneous 368,432 - - - 368,432
Total revenues 7,618,221 190,591 2,237,366 2,515 10,048,693
Expenditures
Current:
General government 2,250,735 38,691 - 2,289,426
Public safety 3,069,377 10,000 - 3,145471
Streets and public properties 2,002,064 51,903 - 2,349 368
Culture and recreation 417,768 1,735,869 - 2,284,410
Debt service:
Principal - 337,500 397,808
Interest - 38,034 47,006
Total expenditures 492 268 1,836,463 375,534 10,513,489
Excess (deficiency) of revenues he
over expenditures (191,003) (301,671 400,903 (373,019} (464,796)
Other financing sources:
Lease proceeds 174,929 - - - 174,929
Transfers in 1,119,364 266,094 - 295,436 1,680,894
Transfers out (768,846) (1,620,316) (517,694) - (2,906,856}
Total other financing sources 525,447 (1,354,222) (517,694) 295 436 (1,051,033)
Net change in fund balance 334,444 (1,655,899) (116,791) (77,583) (1,515,829)
Fund balance - October 1 1,052,157 2,529,338 189,528 394,469 4,165 492
Prior period adjustment (31,362) - - - (31,362)
Fund balance - October 1, restated 1,020,795 2,529,338 189,528 394,469 4,134,130
Fund balance - September 30 § 1355239 § 873,439 % 72,737 § 316,886 $ 2618301

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT D-1

CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit D) 3 (1,515,829)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets ag expenditures. In contrast,
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the useful lives
and reported as deprecition expense.

Capital outlay 2,881,106

Deepreciation (1,879,215) 1,001,891

Governmental funds report the entire net sales price (proceeds) from sale of an

asset as revenue because it provides current financial resources. However, the

statement of activities reports only the gain or loss from the sale of the assets,

Thus, the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost

of the asset sold. (9,887

irces, while the
ancial resources

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial res
repayment of principal on long-term debt consumes the curre

of governmental funds. 222 879
k]
Pine revenue is recognized on the modified accrual basis % funds since it is not
available for current financial resources. (10,064)
2,893
1o 1,324
Bond &nortization (6,510} (2,293)
Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit B) 3 (313,303

The accompanying ntotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

EXHIBIT E

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses

Total unrestricted current assets
Current Restricted Assets
Cash

Total restricted assets

Noncurrent Assets
Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Water and Sewer system
Construction in process

Less: aconmulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment
Noncwrrent Other Assets
Boud Issuance costs, net
Total noncwrent other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses®
Accrued interest

Compensated absences

Due to other funds

Bonds payable

Customer deposits

‘Total current Habilities

Nonecurrent Liabilities
Bonds payable
Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Utility Harbor

Fund Fund Total
$ 415232 § 250,134  § 665,366
337,203 - 337,203
89,120 - 89,120
42,000 - 42,000
883,555 250,134 1,133,689
278,284 - 278,284
278,284 - 278,284
118,603 - 118,603
622,276 - 622,276
- 103,951
74,848 - 74,848,694
; 1,176,355 1,668,495
f e, 1176355 77,362,019
14,617,881 - 14,617,881
567,783 1,176,355 62,744,138
44,511 - 44,511
44,511 - 44,511
62,774,133 1,426,489 64,200,622
186,043 - 186,043
18,979 - 18,979
33,813 - 33,813
533,949 - 533,949
355,000 - 355,000
278,285 - 278,285
1,406,069 - 1,406,069
1,432,797 - 1,432,797
9,982 - 0,982
1,442,779 - 1,442,779
2,348,848 - 2,848,848
59,779,986 1,176,355 60,056,341
145,299 250,134 395,433
§ 59925285 § 1426480 § 61,351,774

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

EXHIBIT F

Utility Harbor
Fund Fund Total
Operating Revenues
Charges for services § 2593071 % - § 2,593,071
Total operating revenues 2,593,071 - 2,593,071
Operating Expenses
Salaries and related expenses 810,891 - 810,891
Natural gas purchase 220,659 - 220,659
Garbage 318,963 - 318,963
- Wastewater treatment 638,362 - 638,362
Supplies 162,591 - 162,591
Repairs and maintenance 6,963 - 6,963
Other services and charges 468,846 1,087 469,933
Depreciation expense - 2,994,273
Amortization expense - 20,206
Total operating expenses 1,087 5,642 841
Operating Income (1,087) (3,049,770)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest eamings 313 139 652
Interest expense (86,115) - (86,115)
Loss on asset disposal 9 (2,500) - (2,500
Total non-operating revenue (experisgs)?” (88,102) 139 (87,963)
Transfers
Transfers in 544,618 887,906 1,432,524
Transfers out (206,562) - {206,562)
Net Transfers 338,050 887,906 1,225,962
Change in Net Assels (2,798,729) 886,958 (1,911,771)
Net assets beginning of year 62,566,378 - 62,566,378
Prior period adjustment 157,636 539,531 697,167
Net assets beginning of year, restated 62,724,014 539,531 63,263,545
Net assets end of year § 59925285 § 1426489 $ 61,351,774

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT G

CITY OF BAY ST, LOUIS, MISSISSIPP]
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Utility Harbor
Fund Fund Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers § 2,447,778 $ - $ 2,447,778
Payments to employees (814,625) - (314,625)
Payments to suppliers {271,011) - (271,011
Payments for contractual services (647,805) - {647,805)
Payments for other goods and services (475,808) (1,087) (476,805)
Net cash provided by operating activities 238,529 (1,087) 237,442
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Principal payments on debt (340,000} - (340,000)
Interest expense (89,515) - (89,515}
Transfer out {206,562) - (206,562)
Transfers in 544,618 887,906 1,432,524
Net cash provided by financing activities (91,459} 887,006 796,447
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest received 513 139 652
Acqusition of capital assets (650,082) {636,824) (1,286,906
Net cash (used) by investing activities {649,569 (636,685) (1,286,254}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 250,134 (252,363)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year - 1,196,015
End of year $ 250,134  § 943,650
Reconciliation of Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) : 3,048,683y § (1,087) & (3,049,770)
Adjustments to reconcile operating incefhe to nel cash%
provided by operating activities: =
Depreciation expense 2,994,273 - 2,994,273
Ameoritization expense 20,206 - 20,206
(Increase) decrease in current adig
Accounts receivable (154,914) - (154,914}
Inventory 58,815 - 58,815
Prepaid expenses (41,998) - (41,998)
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable 53,424 - 53,424
Due from other funds 351,520 - 351,520
Compensated absences (3,734) - (3,734)
Customer deposits 9,620 - 9,620
Net cash (used) by operating activities h 238,529 % (1,OB7) 8§ 237,442
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
per statement of cash flows to the statement of
net assets Utility Fund
Current
Current Assets Restricted Assets Total
Cash and cash equivalents - Getober 1 g 927,351 $ 268,664 § 1,196,015
Net increase/(decrease) {261,985 9,620 (252,365
Cash and cash equivalents - September 30 § 665,366 $ 278,284 % 943,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A, Introduction

The City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi, was originally incorporated January 21, 1818, under the laws of the
State of Mississippi. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of Government. The following services
are provided by the City: Public Safety (Police, Firc and Protection Inspection), Street Maintenance,
Sanitation, Water and Sewer and Gas Services, Social and Recreational Services, Public Improvements,
Planning and Zoning, and General Administrative Services.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are
discussed in subsequent sections of this note. The remainder of the notes is organized to provide explanations,
including required disclosures, of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The City’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including
organizations as component units of the City consist of oversight responsibility, special financing relationships
and scopc of public services. Oversight responsibility determined by the extent of financial
mterdependency, control over the selection of the govemning futhd Hy and management, ability to significantly
influence operations, and accountability for fiscal mattess” ased on these criteria, the City has no component
units. However, see Note 9 for information describiagfelated organizations not included in the City’s
reporting entity. '

C. Basis of Presentation
Governmeni—-wide Financial Stateme

The government-wide financial staterfignts ( 1 » the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities)
report information on all of the non-ﬁdu%ﬁ%ictivities of the City. Governmental activities, which normally
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goeds, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; (2) operating
grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including restricted investment income; and
(3) capital grants and contributions which fimd the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets
and include fees to developers. Taxes and items not properly included as program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements —

The City segregates transactions related to certain fimctions or activities in separate funds in order to aid
financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are presented for
governmental and proprietary activities. These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the
fund financial statements; all non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single columm.

Governmental Funds —

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental fanctions typically are financed. The
measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance of current financial resources.
The City has presented the following major governmental funds:

General Fund

The General fund is the main operating fund of the City. Ths fund is used to account for all financial
resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax reygnues and other receipts that are not restricted
AcCOk ted for in this fimd. General operatmg

the General fund

Disaster Recovery Fund

CDBG Grant Fund

The CDBG Grant Fund is a special revenue find that accounts for all of the revenues and related expenditures
that are received from the Mississippi Development Authority as part of the Community Development Block
Grant - Entitlement Grants for the rebuilding and recovery efforts from Hurricane Katrina.

Proprietary Funds — Business-type activities

Proprietary Funds are accounted for using economic resources measurement focus: and the accrual basis of
accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial position, and cash flow.
All assets and liabilities are included in the Statement of Net Assets. The City has presented the following
major proprietary funds:

Utility Fand

The Utility fund is used to account for the provision of water, sewer and gas services to the residents of the
City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of the water, sewer and g2as
system and billing and collection activities. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, long-term debt principal and interest for water and sewer debt. All costs are financed through
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Continued)

charges to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if necessary to ensure integrity of the
funds.

Harbor Fund

The Harbor fund accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing
boat slips to the residents of the City of Bay St. Louis will be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges in the form of rental receipts.

D. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and
expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting
relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide statements and the fund financial statement8 for proprietary funds are reported using the
economic resource measurement focus and the accrual bésks, of accounting. The economic resource
measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether ¢ or non-current) are included on the
Statement of Net Assets and the operating statements pfesenf#increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in

venues ar¢ recognized when earned, including

unbilled water, sewer and gas services which Xpenscs are recognized at the time the Hability is
incuired.
Governmental fund financial statement ¢ using the current financial resource measurement focus

and are accounted for using the modifi
revenues are recognized when susceptible tofaccrual, i.e., when they become both measurable and available.
“Measurable” means the amount of the triffsaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within
the current period ot soon enough thereafter to be used to pay Habilities of the current period. For this purpose,
the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
pertod. Expenditurcs are recorded when the fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures, as
well as expenditures related to compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: property taxes, franchise taxes, sales taxes and
intergovernmental revenues. In general, other revenues are recognized when cash is received by the City.

Operating income reported in the proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related
to the primary and continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are
charges to customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or
services and include personnel costs, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. Other
revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements. |

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

E. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

F. Cash and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are primarily considered to be cash on hand and amounts held in demand
deposits. For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, short-term investments with a maturity date within
three months of the date acquired by the City, if any, are considergd to be cash equivalents.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) direct lati 5, of the United States government to the
payment of which the full faith and credit of the Unates government is pledged, (2) certificates of
(

deposit when insured or secured by acceptable coﬂatera 3) obligations of the State of Mississippi; or any
“B3isstesippi which have been approved by a reputable

see with GASB Statement 31 with all investment income,
greported as revenue in the financial statements. Income from
short-term interest bearing securities 1%

G. Receivables and Payables

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported as “due to/from other funds” include outstanding
charges by one fund to another for services or goods and other miscellaneous receivables/payables between
funds. Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred fo as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of inter-fund
loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of inter-fund loans). Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve

account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable available financial resources.
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

An allowance has been provided for in the Utility fund for estimated uncollectible charges. The allowance is
based on historical collection experience and other relevant circumstances.

H. Inventory

The City’s utility fund operation is required to maintain an inventory of stored natural gas with its supplier.
The gas inventory is valued at cost using the first in/first out (FIFO) method.

L Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond September 30, 2012, are recorded as
prepaid items.

T, Restricted Assets

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature or normal understanding of the
availability of the asset. Such constraints are cither externally imgposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or
laws. Restricted assets in the governmental fund represent um 58 §gt bond proceeds, amounts restricted per bond
covenants, and amounts restricted by grantors and coqglutors wRestricted assets in the enterprise fund
represent utility customer deposits subject to refund.#” When both restricted and non-restricted assets are

available for use, the policy is to use restricted assets ﬂrs ;

K. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, p

sidewalks, and similar items), net of dep?
activities columns in the governmenfayide fidancial statements,

However, infrastructure assets acquired of constructed prior to October 1, 2003 are not reported in the basic
financial statements, as allowed by GASB Statement No. 34. The City generally capitalizes assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are
reported at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the vatue of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized,

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements arc capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized
value of the assets constructed. No interest cost was capitalized during the current fiscal yeat.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Plant structures and buildings 15-40 years
Distribution systems, water mains and hydrants 10-20 years
Improvements 10-40 years
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 3-10 years

L. TLong-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities and proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond issuance costs and bond
premiums and discounts are capitalized and amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premivum or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

The governmental find financial statements recognize the pr

#ds of debt and premiums as other financing
sources in the crurrent period. Issuance costs are reported as e i

fures.

M. Compensated Absences

Full-time employees who work year round are pragte
upon the employee’s length of service. Employ
maximum of thirty days accrued vacatiopd &
employee is entitled upon termination is sixgygs
upon termination or retirement. Thers”1s e;-_v.:__
paid upon termination of employm?ﬁ Each
Personal leave may be accurmulated up {Gpd naxinmum of eighty hours. Employees with more than one year of
service are entitled to personal leave upon termination or retirement. All vacation and personal leave is
accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In the fund financial
statements, a liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements or use of vacation time.

The compensated absences liability is computed using the specific identification method whereby the actual
number of vacation hours is multiplied by the employee’s hourly rate at September 30, 2012, The resulting
liability is then increased to include social security and retirement contributions that the City is required to pay
upon liquidation of the liability.

N. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, the governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose or
other board designations. Refer to Note 8 for more detail on fund balance presentation.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0. Net Assets

Net Assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities, Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through constitational provisions or
enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other
governments.

P, Intergovernmental Revenues in Governmental Funds

Intergovernmental revenues, consisting of grants, entitlements and shared revenues, are usually recorded in
Governmental Funds when measurable and available. However, the “available” criterion applies for certain
federal grants and shared revenues when the expenditure is made because expenditure is the prime factor for
determining eligibility. Similarly, if cost sharing or matching requirements exist, revenue recognition depends
on compliance with these requirements,

Q. Post- Employment Health Care Benefits

The City does not have costs associated with post-empf t benefits for retired employees. The City does
allow employees to continue in the group plan aft

premiums.

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTSS

Cash — A sumimary of cash as of Sept mber

Checking
Cash on and Savings
Hand Accounts Total

Governmental Activities

(General Fund 3 3,796 § 704,520 § 708316

Disaster Recovery Fund - 6,418 6,418

CDBG Fund - 32,937 32,937
Other Governmental Funds - 259,429 259,429
Business - type Activities -

Utility Fund 100 693,416 693,516

Harbor Fund - 250,134 250,134

$ 3,896 $ 1,946,854 $ 1,950,750

Mississippi statutes allow municipalities to select depositories on the basis of competitive bid. Depositorics
must be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized in an amount equal to
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NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

105% of the uninsured deposit. The collateral is held in the name of the State Treasurer under a program
established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5 of the Mississippi Code.

Under this program, the City’s funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State
Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against
those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, securities pledged by that institution would be
liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation. By using this multiple financial institution collateral pool, all of the City’s deposits at
September 30, 2012 are covered by FDIC insurance or by collateral. The City’s deposits are not subject to

custodial credit risk.

At September 30, 2012, deposits (including restricted deposits) are as follows:

Bank Carrying
Balance
Cash $ 2,560,779

Governmental Activities

Cash
Restricted for capital projegt $ 172,405
Lease proceeds % 174,929
Restricted for debt 7,030
Total restricted cash = 354,364
Business - type Activities
Cash
Restricted for customer utility deposits 278,284
Total restricted cash government-wide $ 632,648
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NOTE 3: REVENUE AND RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2012 consist of the following:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Sales tax $ 176,026  § -3 176,026
Franchise taxes 95,685 - 95,685
Gaming 158,986 - 158,986
Property tax 21,697 _ - 21,697
Court revenue 436,740 - 436,740
Utility accounts - 1,623,335 1,623,335
Other 16,788 9,473 26,261
Total receivables 905,922 1,632,808 2,538,730
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables (327,555) (1,295,605) (1,623,160)
Total receivables, net $ 5787367 § 337,203 § 915,570

(A) Property Tazes

The City levies a tax on real and personal property base the assessed value of property as compiled by the
Hancock County (County) tax assessor from mfo { # @xtracted from the County assessment tax rolls. The
taxes on real property attach as an enforceabi® 11t _' e property ag of January 1 and personal property taxes
become a lien on March 1. '

Taxes on motor vehicles and mobil& home
month of original purchase. Taxes oni%geal#ind personal property are levied by the City Council at the first
regular meeting in September.

VEi:%c""?ome a lien and are due in the month that coincides with the

The City’s tax assessment roll is then approved by the City Council after a series of public hearings to receive
citizens’ objections. The City bills the real and personal property taxes, and the County collects them. The
County bills and collects the ad valorem and mobile home taxes for the City. These taxes are remitted by the
County monthly to the City. In addition, the County also remits to the City a prorate share of road and bridge
taxes that they collect.

In accordance with Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended for code section 27-39-321, the City Council may
levy taxes in any amount for general purposes and general improvements. However, taxes collected for the
cutrent year are limited fo an increase of not more than 10% over receipts for any one of the preceding three
years. For purposes of the computation, taxes collected in the current year resulting from property added to the
tax assessment roll are excluded from the computation.

The rates are expressed in terms of mills (i.c., ten mills equal one cent). The combined tax rate to finance
general governmental services, including the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt and other
purposes for the year ended September 30, 2012, was 17.75 mills or $17.75 per $1,000 of assessed valuation.
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NOTE 3: REVENUE AND RECEIVABLES (Continued)

A summary of the assessed valuations and tax levies of the City for the year ended September 30, 2012 arc as
follows:

Real property $ 100,494,542
Personal property 6,143,659
Public utilities 2,365,028
Automobiles 11,377,661
Mobile hotnes 86,540

Total $ 120,467,430

The tax levies for the City were 14.00 mitls for the General Fund, 1.0 mill for the 2010 Bond, and 2.75 mills
for the Library for a total of 17.75 mills for the year ending September 30, 2012.

(B) Sales Taxes

The State levies a 7% sales tax on retail sales and remits 18.5% ofithe amount collected (within the corporate
boundaries of the City) back to the City monthly. Sdles tax revenue reported in the general fund was
$1,134,718 a 2.2% increase from the prior year. Sales civable consists of taxes collected in August and
September 2012 but not received by the City until November 2012.

(C) Gaming

The City receives gaming revenues frogs located within the corporate city limits as follows:

Gross Revenue Gaming Tax and * Device Tax

The gross revenue gaming tax is impose and collected by the State of Mississippi similar to sales tax and

remitted to the City.

The gaming device tax is similar to a personal property tax and is assessed on all gaming devices maintained
by casinos within the City’s corporate limits. The tax is also collected by the State. The amount of tax
recognized as gaming revenue for September 30, 2012 is $122,959 and the amount of gaming device tax is
$117,300, respectively, These revenues are included in gaming revenue on the Statement of Activities.

Boarding Fees

The City is permitted by law to collect a boarding fee from casinos within its corporate limits. Accordingly,
the City has negotiated a contractual amount to be paid directly to the City on a monthly basis and is based on
gross revenues. The City collected $2,038,663 in boarding fees for the year ended September 30, 2012; this is
a decrease of 4.6% in comparison with the prior year, This amount is included in gaming revenue.
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NOTE 4: DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Due from other governments consist of the following as of September 30, 2012:

Governmental
Activities
Due from the State of Mississippi 3 291,787
Due from Hancock County 34,066
Due from FEMA 2,330,709
Due from CDBG 81,161
Total receivables, net $ 2,737,723

NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2012 is as follows:

Balance o, Sales/Transfers Balance
Additions Adjustments September 30
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land - $ - 5 1,116,633
Construction in progress 2,341,918 (8,209,021) 6,650,118
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,341,918 (8,209,021) 7,766,751
Capital assets being depreciated: '
Buildings 24,002,251 74,799 1,020,499 25,097,549
Machinery and equipment 2,049,030 84,994 15,000 2,149,024
Improvements/ Infrastructure 20,433,202 379,395 7,157,022 27,969,619
Vehicles 2,659,502 - (114,715) 2,544,787
Total capital assets being depreciated 49,143,985 539,188 8,077,806 57,760,979
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (680,396) (484,260) 4,617 (1,160,039}
Machinery and equipment (1,198,719 (208,215) (6,550) (1,413,484)
Improvements/ Infrastructure (4,452,216) (979,404) 6,550 (5,425,070
Vehicles (1,971,069) (207,336) 116,711 (2,061,694
Total accumulated depreciation (8,302,400} (1,879,215) 121,328 (10,060,287)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 40,841,585 (1,340,027) 8,199,134 47,700,692
Governmental activities capital assets, net b 54475439 § 1,001,891 § (9,887) § 55,467,443
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance Sales/Transfers Balance
October 1 Additions Adjustments September 30
Business - type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ 598,126 $§ 1070369 % - % 1,668,495
Total capital assets not being depreciated 598,126 1,070,369 - 1,668,495
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 118,603 - - 118,603
Machinery and equipment 430,739 216,537 (25,000) 622,276
Water, sewer and gas system 74,848,604 - - 74,848,694
Vehicles 103,951 - - 103,951
Total capital assets being depreciated 75,501,987 216,537 {25,0600) 75,693,524
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (73,623) & {1,000} - (74,623)
Machinery and equipment (367,072)# (18,734) 22,500 (363,306)
Water, sewer and gas system (11,111,855) 18,974,539) - (14,086,394)
Vehicles (9%,558) - - (93,558)
(1 46,?@@) (2,994,273) 22,500 (14,617,881)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net ) {2,777,736) 2,500) 61,075,643
Business -type activities capital assets, net $ (1,707367) § (2,500) § 62,744,138
Depreciation expense was charged to fi s/programs as follows:
& A
Govemment;:%%:&g}% es:
General goverffment $ 385,323
Public safety 360,666
Streets and public propetties 805,046
Culture and recreation 228,180
Total governmental activities depreciation k) 1,879,215
Business-type Activities
Water, sewer and gas $ 2,994 273
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in outstanding debt during the year ended September 30, 2012 are as follows:

Payable at Principal Payable at  Principal Due

Governmental Activities October 1 Additions Reductions  September 30 inOne Year
Bonds payable $ 1437500 § - § 337500 § 1,100000 § 347500
Capital leases payable 195,109 174,929 60308 309,730 80,144
Compensated absences payable 310,663 194,015 224418 280,260 196,904
Total governmental activities 1,943272 368,944 622,226 1,689,990 624,548

Business-type Activities

Bonds payable 2,180,000 - 340,000 1,840,000 355,000
Compensated absences 47528 30,503 34,236 43,795 33813
2,227,528 30,503 374,236 1,883,795 388,813
Less deferred loss on bond refmancing (63,195) - 10,992 (52,203) -
Total business - type activities 2,164,333 3&;51%%% 385,228 1,831,592 388,813

$

Total government - wide $ 4,107,605

A S 100744 5 30058 5 1013360

(A) Bonds Payable

Maturity Original Balance

Date Rates Issue September 30
Governmental Activities:
GO Bond, Series 2003 8/27/2003 8/1/2013 2.75-3.9% § 2,000,000 § 240,000
GO Katrina Loan Refinancing
Bond, Series 2010 712072010 3/1/2020 2.47% 1,075,000 860,000
Total governmental activities 5 3,075,000 § 1,100,000
Business-type Activities:
GO Water, Sewer, and Gas System
Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 4/6/2005 T2017  3.0%-43%  § 4,290,000 $ 1,840,000
Less deferred loss on bond refunding {133,716) (52,205)
Total business-type activities 4,156,284 1,787,795
Total bonds payable at year end $ 7,231,284 $ 2,887,795
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The annual bonded debt service requirements to maturity for the bonds are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activitics Business-type Activities Total
September 30, Principal Interest ' Principal Interest Requirements
2013 b 347,500 3 27115 k3 355,000 % 75,915 5 805,530
2014 107,500 17,259 365,000 61,715 551,474
2015 107,500 14,604 380,000 47,115 549,219
2016 107,500 11,949 380,000 31,440 530,889
2017 107,500 9,293 360,000 15,480 452,273
2018-2020 322,500 11,949 - - 334,449
Total $ 1,100,000 $ 92,169 & 1,840,000 § 231,665 $ 3,263,834

The City’s General Obligation (GO) Bond, Series 2003 issued in August 2003 requires the establishment of
certain funds (accounts) and periodic transfers of money to these funds as follows:

*»  Construction Fund for the purpose of accounting for4
costs of the bonds.

¢ Bond Fund for the purpose of setting asid
and mterest on the bonds.

s 2010 issued in July 2010, requires the establishment of
g sufficient for the purpose of paying the next due payment of
Payment of agent’s fees in connection therewith.

The City’s GO Katrina Loan Refunding
2 Bond Fund (account) which consist
principal and interest on the bonds ag®
The City’s GO Water, Sewer and Gas System Refunding Bonds, Series, 2005 issued in April 2005, requires
the establishment of a Bond Fund (account) which consists of funds suffictent for the purpose of paying the
next due payment of principal on the bonds.

These monies are not separate funds but are restricted amounts within the general, debt service and utility
funds.

(B)  Capital Leases Payable

The City entered into a lease agreement with Bancorp South Equipment Finance on April 28, 2011 for the
purchase of three tractors in the amount of $211,441. These assets and lease are reflected in the Governmental
Activities colurmm of the Statement of Net Assets.

34



CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Governmental
Activities
Equipment b 211441
Less accunmilated depreciation (22,202)
5 189,239

The City entered into a lease agreement with First Capital Equipment Leasing Corporation on April 16, 2012
for the purchase of five police vehicles with package equipment installed in the amount of $174,929. As of
September 30, 2012, the vehicles were not completed for delivery; therefore the lease amount of $174,929 is
reflected in the Statement of Net Assets as restricted cash.

The following is an analysis of the leased assets included in machinery and equipment:

Year ending September 30:

88,766

90,866

%, 92,664
54477

Total minimum lease payments " 326,773

Less amount representing interest & (17,043)

Present value of minimur . $ 309,730

<) Legal Debt Margin

The City’s legal debt limit for general tion bonds is $18,070,115 of which approximately $16,970,000 is

available to the City for further borrowing,.
NOTE 7: INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS

During the course of the normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds including
expenditures and transfers of resources primarily to provide services.

(A) Inter-fund Receivables and Payables

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported as “due to/due from other funds” include outstanding
charges by one fund to another for services or goods, subsidy commitments outstanding at year-end, and other
miscellaneous receivables/payables between funds. Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are described as. “due to/due from
other funds” (i.e., the current portion of inter-fund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-
current portion of inter-fund loans).
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NOTE 7: INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS (Continned)

Any residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. Inter-fund receivables and payables
consisted of the following as of September 30, 2012:

Due From
Other
General Disaster Governmental
Due To Fund Fund Funds Total
General Fund $ - § 15,502 § - $ 15,502
Utitity Fund 476,492 - 57,457 533,949
Total $ 476,492  § 15502 § 57457 § 549451

(B) Inter-fund Transfers

Transfers and payments within the reporting entity are substantialty for the purposes of subsidizing operating
functions, funding capital projects and asset acquisitions, or maintaining debt service on a routine basis.
Resources are accumulated in a fund to support and simpliff’ the administrations of various projects or
programs. ;

The government-wide statement of activities eliminatfs ‘}@Sfers and are reported within the segregated

governmental and business-type activities columns, _

sstatement. Inter-fund transfers consisted of the

Only {ransfers between the two columms appear
following as of September 30, 2012: 5@

Tag Transfers In

& ?&aster Other
Geneki ecovery  (Governmental Utility Harbor

Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Total
Transfers Cut
General Fund $ - § 66,094 § 205436 § 131250 § 276066 § 768,846
Disaster Recovery Fund 096,780 - - 413,048 210,488 1,620,316
CDBG Grant Fund 116,022 - - 320 401,352 517,694
Utikity Fund 6,562 200,000 - - - 206,562

§ LI19364 § 266,094 $§ 295436 $ 544618 § 887,006 $ 3,113,418

The transfers from the General fund into the Other Governmental funds were for the establishment of 2 reserve
in the Mumicipal Reserve fund and the transfers to the Disaster Recovery fund, Utility fimd and the Harbor
fund were for expenditures paid from the General fund for those other funds. The transfers from the Disaster
Recovery fund and the CDBG Grant fund into the Utility fund and the Harbor fund were for construction and
other expenditures that were reimbursed through federal grants and accounted for in the Disaster Recovery
fund or CDBG Grant fund but were actual expenses of the Utility fund and Harbor fimd, The transfers from
the Disaster Recovery fund into the General fund were for reimbursements of disaster related expenditures that
were paid out of the General fund.
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NOTE 8: FUND BALANCES & RESTRICED NET ASSETS

Fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable ~ Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in a spendable form or because they
are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the City Charter, City Code, state
or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors,

Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action by a City
Council ordinance or resolution. This includes the budget reserve account.

Assigned - Amounts that are designated by the Mayor for a specific purpose but are not spendable until a
budget ordinance is passed by the City Council.

Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

The details of the fund balances are included in the Gove__ental Funds Balance Sheet (page 14). As
discussed in Note 1, restricted funds are used first as approprié .-signed funds are reduced to the extent that
expenditure authority has been budgeted by the Counc the asskgnment has been changed by the Mayor.,

Decreases to fund balance first reduce unassigned furid ance; in the event that unassigned find balance
e used in that order.

becomes zero, then assigned and committed fund balance

General Fund

c07%791,019 at September 30, 2012. Prepaid expenditures of
‘qalance, $24,222 is considered committed fund balance for

The General fund has an unassigned fund "
$192,664 are considered nonspendgh ]
recreational purposes and $172,405 «w g
proceeds for the purchase of five police Vel

Other Funds

The amounts restricted in the Disaster Recovery fund and the CDBG Grant fund is considered restricted fund
balance for grantor funded disaster recovery and rebuilding efforts after Hurricane Katrina, The amount
restricted in the Other Governmental fund is for amounts that are restricted for debt service as reported in the
Debt Service fund.

The following non-major fund has a committed fund balance designated for specific purposes:

Municipal Reserve Fund $252,399
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NOTE 8: FUND BALANCES & RESTRICED NET ASSETS (Continued)

The following summarizes restricted net assets on the Statement of Net Assets at September 30, 2012:

2003 Bond fund § 172,405
Debt Service 7,030
$ 179,435
NOTE 9: JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual arrangement that is owned,
operated, or governed by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control, in
which the participants retain (a) an ongoing financial interest or (b} an ongoing financial responsibility.
Generally, the purpose of a joint venture is to pool resources and share costs, risks and rewards of providing
goods or services to the venture participants directly, or for the benefit of the general public or specific service
recipients.

Hancock County Solid Waste Authority

The City provides for pickup and disposal of garbage andsfrash thréugh a solid waste contract with Hancock
County Solid Waste Authority (Authority), formerty H ogiﬁounty Solid Waste Management District,

gtfisthe City of Bay St. Louis and Hancock County,

The Authority was formed as an inter-local joint vert it
i § officially incorporated in March 1998 pursuant to an

Mississippi, late in fiscal year 1994. The Auth

; - ity paid a total of $318,963 for solid waste services, included
in the business-type activities expenseiin the gtatement of activities. The City pays $6.50 per residential solid
waste pickup. The City is jointly and se%g;? liable for all of the liabilities of the Authority.

The Authority is also classified as a joint venture between the City of Bay St. Louis and other members.
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The following is synopsis of the Authority’s financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012;

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Current assets 3 1,071,737
LIABILITIES

Current and other liabilities 167,889
NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 3 903,348

CHANGES INNET ASSETS

Operating revenues b 1,550,829
Operating expenses’ (2,017,650)
Non-operating revenues (expenses) 4 13,001

Increase in net assets {453,820)

AN
Hancock County Utility Authority

The District provides for the operation an%%‘aal fenange of the sewer treatment plant on a cost reimbursement
basis. Pursuant to the terms of the ag it

maintenance directly associated wi
treatment facility.

The costs associated with the contract totI $638,362 for the year ended September 30, 2012, and have been
included in the business-type activities expenses in the statement of activities. A fee has been added to rates
charged by the Utility billing system as an assessment for the District.

The City’s obligation to pay operational costs of the District was in conjunction with the obligations of all
other public agencies similarly contracting with the District, including the City of Waveland and Hancock
County, Mississippi. Whenever any public agency shall default in the payment to the District of its respective
payment, the District may adjust the contract sumas of the remaining public agencies which are not in default so
as to increase their confract sums by a proportional amount,

Accordingly, the City was jointly and severally liable for all of the liabilities of the District. The District is
classified as a joint venture between the City of Bay St. Louis and the other members.
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In April 2009, the City entered into an agreement with Hancock County Utility Authority (Authority) whereby
the Authority conveyed the wastewater collection system {once constructed by the Authority and accepted by
the City) to the City for the purpose of collecting and transporting wastewater to the Authority’s treatment
plant for treatment and discharge.

The following is a synopsis of the Authority’s financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30,
2012: '

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ASSETS

Current assets $ 1,682,077
Non-current assets 148,862,115
150,544,192

LIABILITIES
Current and other liabilities 2,497,720
Long-term debt outstanding 13,298,016
15,795,736

$  134,748.456

NET ASSETS

Operating revenues $ 2,006,075
Operating expgfises (2,839,586)
Non-operating gy 19,934,572

Tncrease in net assdk $ 19,101,061

NOTE 10: RETIREMENT PLANS
{A) Public Employees” Retirement System

The City participates in a retirement system administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement System of
Mississippi (PERS). The system is a defined benefit plan and includes a multi-employer, cost sharing pension
plan as described below:

Plan description and provisions

Substantially all of the City’s full-time employees participate in PERS. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi
Legislature,
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PERS issues a publically available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement
System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005, or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-
800-444-PERS.

Description of Funding Policy

PERS members are required to contribute 9.0% of their annual covered salary. The City is required to
contribute an actuarially determined rate of annual payroll which is 14.26% as of September 30, 2012, The
contribution requirements of PERS members are established and may be amended only by the State of
Mississippi Legislature. The City’s contributions to PERS for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and
2010 were $537,749, $540,441, and $594,447, respectively equal to the required contribuitions for the year.

(B) Deferred Compensation Plan

The City, through PERS, offers its employees a voluntary deferged compensation plan created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plarn, availablg#te all City employees, permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred mpen%%on is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergeney.

The assets of the plan are held in trust for the exdlusive béyefit of participants and their beneficiaries. The
requirements of Internal Revenue Code Section 45%(g) pre

deferred by employees, including the relateginck
fiduciary accountability for the plan. Acc%' ‘
participants, including earnings on plafl assé

NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS AND %

(A) Litigation

"The City is party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in governmental operations, Although the
outcome of these proceedings is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City’s legal counsel the
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

(B) Grants and Awards

Amounts recetved or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies, principally federal and state governments. Any disallowed expenses, including amounts already
collected, might constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The City does not believe any contingent
liabilities are material,
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CITY OF BAY SY. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

(Cy  Contract Commitments

The City had the following contract commitments with respect to unfinished capital projects as of September
30, 2012, which will be paid from existing grants:

Money Spentto  Remaining

Governmental Activity Project Budget Date Commitment
CDBG Waterfront Improvements $ 9,515,650 § 6,325,196 § 3,190,454
McDonald Park 205,894 187,894 18,600
Spanish Trail Sidewalk & Lights 892,514 48,574 843,940
Main Street Lighting 1,049,328 88,454 960,874

Total governmental activity 11,663,386 6,650,118 5,013,268

Business - type Activity

Utility Fund
PW 5782 Lift Station #1 510,703 16,324
Public Water Fluoridation Project 21,835 141,400
Total utility activity 532,538 157,724

Harbor Fund

PW 0641 Jimmy Rutherford Pier 291,472 2,170,704
CDBG Pier & Harbor 847,444 15,826,150
DMR Pier & Harbor 940,278 38,938 901,340
Total harbor activity y 20,076,048 1,177,854 18,858,194
Total business - type activity 20,766,310 1,710,392 19,055,918
Total government - wide $ 32,429,696 $§ 8360510 $ 24,069,186

NOTE 12: RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is covered for significant losses through commercial insurance carriers except for the following,
which are covered through self-insurance risk pools.

(A)  Self-Insurance — Workers Compensation Fund

The City is one of approximately 250 members in the Mississippi Municipal Workers’ Compensation Group,
Inc. This non-profit corporation is a self-insurance workers’ compensation fimd organized under the non-
profit laws of the State of Mississippi. The group is self-insured under statutory workers compensation
protection up to $1,000,000. Members are jointly and severally liable for the obligations for the group. The
possibility of additional liability exists, but that amount, if any, cannot be determined.
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 12: RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(B) Self-Insurance Liability Fund

The City is one of approximately 250 members in the Mississippi Municipal Liability Plan. The Plan is a
private non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Mississippi. The plan provides liability
and tort claims insurance for its members up to $500,000 and $50,000 per occurrence, respectively. The plan
is totally self-insured with claims and expenses paid out of the premiums and the members are jointly and
severally liable for any claims and expenditures beyond the premium base. The possibility of additional
liability exists, but that amount, if any cannot be determined.

NOTE 13: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The City had the following adjustments to beginning fund balance and net assets, respectively which are
reflected in the following schedule:
Business - Type

Governmental Activities
Activifies Exhibit B
Exbihit B Exhibit D & Exhibit F
Correct property clean up accounts receivable $ 5 (4‘3%53) $  (43363) §$ -
Correct prior year transfer of utility capital assets ", 131,230 131,250 131,250
Correct court fine receivable reporting 4 - (119,249) -
Reclassify construction in process ", (523,545) - 565,917
Total adjustments (435,658) (31,362) 697,167
Beginning net assets/ fund balance 57,454,346 4,165,492 62,566,378

Beginning net assets/ find balance," $ 57,018,688 § 4,134,130 '§ 63,263,545

NOTE 14: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City has evaluated subsequent events through July 22, 2013, which is the date the financial statements are
available to be issued.

The City has awarded and amended construction contracts by change orders increasing total construction by
approximately $21,519,862. These construction contracts are funded from proceeds of FEMA and CDBG
grants and primarily consist of construction of the Harbor.
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SCHEDULE{

CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (with Budget to GAAP Differences)
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $2237,000 § 1,955218 § 1955218 § -
Sales 1,200,000 1,131,741 1,131,741 -
Franchise 376,000 368,870 368,870 -
Licenses and permits 193,000 175,450 175,450 -
Intergovernmental 2,633,102 1,073,601 1,073,691 -
Fines and forfeits 131,500 112,952 113,012 60
Interest 3,000 2,073 2,073 -
Lease revenue A 80,000 77,119 77,119 -
Gaming revenues 2,445,000 2,282,423 2,282,423 -
Miscellaneous 675,000 697,053 697,067 14
Total revenues 9,973,602 7,876,530 7,876,664 74
EXPENDITURES
General government 2,357,491 2,234 930 2,235,030 (100)
Public Safety 3,181,071 3,149,775 3,149,775 -
Streets and public properties 3,353,802 1,789,495 -
Cuiture and Recreation 420,763 415,653 -
Total general governmment 9,313,127 7,589,953 {100
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 660,475 086137 286,711 (26)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Loan & Bond Proceeds 15,464 15,464 -
Transfers in 6,562 6,562 -
Transfers out (545,436) (545,436) -
Total other
financing sources (5234100 {523,410) -
Excess of revenues and other sources
over expenditures (575,000) (236,673) (236,69%) 3 (26)
Fund balance - beginning 575,000 236,673
Fund balance - ending ] - 5 -
Fund balance - Qctober [ -
GAAP hasis, restated 1,020,795
Reconciliation to GAAP basis:
Cumulative difference between GAAP
basis fund balance and budget basis
fund balance at beginning of year
Receivablefrevenue adjustinents 1,013,824
Payable/expenditure adjustments (442,681)
Fund balance - September 30 ~
GAAP basis § 1,355,239
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REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government

Streets and public properties
Culture and Recreation

Total general government

Excess of revenues and other sources
over expenditues

OTHER FINANCING
SQURCES (USES)
Transfers out
Total other
financing sources

Excess of revenues and other sources
over expenditures

Fund balance - begimming
Fund balance - ending

Fund balance - October 1 -
GAAP basis, restated

Reconciliation to GAAP basis:

SCHEDULE II

CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (with Budget to GAAP Differences)

DISASTER RECOYERY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Cumulative difference beiween GAAP

basis fund balance and budget basis

fund balance at beginning of year

Receivable/revenue adjustments
Payablefexpenditure adjustments

Fund balance - September 30 -
GAAP basis

Original Final
Budget Budgei Actual Yariance
$ 3637176 S 1,209,584 1,524,332  § 314,748
- 1,477 1,477 -
3,637,176 1,211,061 1,525,809 314,748
- 136,137 136,137 -
- 295,275 295,275 -
2,462,176 235,128 235,128 -
2,462,176 666,340 066,540 -
1,175,000 544,521 859,269 314,748
{1,659,998) -
(1,639,998) -
(800,729 % 314,748
299,724
$ (815,753}
2,529,338
(1,069,124)
213954
873,439
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SCHEDULE HI

CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (with Budget to GAAP Differences)
CDBG GRANT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental § 15925713 3% 3,235,595 3 2,237,366 § {998,229)

Total revenues 15,925,713 3,235,595 2,237,366 (998,229}
EXPENDITURES
General govemment 29,222 133,922 57,847 76,075
Public Safety 21,491 46,706 31,40 15,215
Streets and public properties 175,000 565,753 238,622 327,131
Culture and Recreation 15,700,000 2,485,214 2,146,368 342,346

Total general goversment 15,925,713 3,235,505 2,474,828 760,767

Excess of revenues and other sources

over expenditures 3 - % - 5 (237462) § (237,462}

Fund balance - October 1 -
GAAP basis, restated 189,528
Recongiliation to GAAP basis:
Curnulative difference between GAAP
basis fund balance and budget basis
fund balance at beginning of year

Payable/expenditure adjustments 120,671

Fund balance - September 30 -

GAAP basis $ 72,737
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE A: BUDGETARY DATA

The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetary data are as follows:

L.

The City Clerk’s office prepares estimates of available revenue and the department
directors submit proposed expenditure budgets to the City Clerk by June 1 of each year.

The Mayor and the department directors review expenditure budgets and necessary
revisions are made.

Budgeted revenues and expenditures are balanced, and a summary budget is prepared and
presented to the Mayor.

The Mayor submits the proposed budget to the Council by August 1 and public hearings
are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

"The final budget is approved by September 15 and is published in a local newspaper on
or before September 30,

The budget is formally amended at the firsf' 1 £
budget revisions are made throughout th T
funds are necessary, a budget deficit§ss
the need for budget amendment, .

The General Fund budget, idhster Recovery Fund budget and the CDBG Grant Fund are
adopted on a cash basis as required by State statute. The appropriated budget is prepared
by fund, function and department. The legal level of budgetary controls is the department
level. The City Clerk’s office exercises budgetary monitoring throughout the fiscal year,
An adopted budget may not exceed its appropriated level without Council approval,
However, department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department.
Budgetary controls are implemented through the City Clerk’s office through the use of
budget to actual reports. Any purchase requisition that will cause a line item to cxceed its
budget will be disallowed by the City Clerk. The department head will then be required

to make an inter-department budget transfer or request a budget amendment.

NOTE B: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET

The General Fund budget to actual comparison schedule reflects an excess of expenditures over revenues
for the year ended September 30, 2012.

The excess of expenditures over revenues in the CDRG Grant Fund is due to capital outlay and the delay
in receiving federal grant reimbursements.
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Municipal Reserve  Debt - Service Total Other
Fund Fund Governmental Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 252,399 § 7030 3 259,429
Due from other funds - 37,457 57,457
Total assets $ 252,399 § 64,487 % 316,886

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted, reported in non-~major:
Debt service
Committed, reported in non-major:
Municipal Reserve
Total fund balances

Total [iabilities and fund balances

04,487 64,487

252,399 - 252,399
252,399 64,487 316,386
252,395 § 64,487  § 316,886
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CITY OF BAY ST, LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Municipal Reserve Total Other
Fund Debt Service Fund  Governmental Funds

REVENUES
Interest 3 2,358 § 157§ 2,515
Total revenues 2,358 157 2,515
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Debt Service:

Principal - 337,500 337,500

Interest - 38,034 38,034
Total Expenditures 375,534 375,534
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (375,377) (373,019
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 295,436 295,436
Total other financing sources (uses) - 295,436 295,436
Change in Fund Balance 2,358 (79,941} (77,583)
Fund balances - beginning %j 250,041 144,428 394,469
Fund balances - ending ' 3 252,399 § 64,487 § 316,386
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI

SURETY BOND SCHEDULE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Name Position Surety Bond
Les Filllingame Mayor Liberty Mutual 100,000
Phillip D. Seal, Jr. Councilperson RLI Surety 100,000
Wendy McDonald Councilperson RLI Surety 100,000
Jeffery Reed Councilperson RLI Surety 100,000
Ray Kidd Councilperson RLI Surety 100,000
Joey Boudin Councilperson CNA Surety 100,000
William J. Compretta Councilperson RLI Surety 100,000
William E. Taylor Councilperson RLI Surety 100,000
David Kolf City Clerk Liberty Mutual 100,000
Katherine Smith Comptroller Liberty Mutual 100,000
Peggy Averhart Court Clerk RLI Surety 50,000
Melanie Raboteau Deputy City Clerk “i I Surety 50,000
Clementine Sheppard Deputy City Clerk Wl Surety 50,000
Sandra Day ¢ RLISurety 50,000
Laura Griffith # RLI Surety 50,000
Charlene Black *, Southgroup 5,000
Carolyn Adams RLI Surety 50,000
Cindy Elliot RLI Surety 50,000
Patricia Tice RLI Surety 50,000
Patricia Tice Southgroup 5,000
Mary Ann Breimer Southgroup 5,000
Paula Fairconnetue Southgroup 5,000
Police Department Departmental RLI Surety 50,000
Fire Department Departmental RLI Surety 50,000
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CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Federal Grantor/

Pass-Through Grantor CFDA
Program Title Number

Pass-through

Grantors
Number

Federal
Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through State of Mississippi Development Authority

Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 14.218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlernent Grant 14.218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 14,218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlernent Grant 14.218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 14,218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 14.218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 14.218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 14.218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlernent Grant 14.218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 14,218
Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant 14.218

Total U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. Department of Justice
Edward Byrme Memorial State and Local Law Enforcement
Assistance Discretionary Grant Program A
Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Gran

Total U. S. Departiment of tustice

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through State of Mississippi
Department of Public Safety the Division &,
State & Community Highway Safety - NHR§A#
Total U.S. Department of Transportation

20.600

U. 8. Department of Health and Human Services
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant 93.991

Total U. S. Department of Health and Human Services

U, S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through State of Mississippi
Diaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially

Declared Disasters) 57.036
Diaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially

Declared Disasters) 97.036
Hazard Mitigation Graunt 97.039

Total U. S. Department of Homeland Security

Total Federal Financial Assistance
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R103-112-02-K.CR
R109-112-03-KCR
R109-112-06-KCR
R109-112-04-K.CR.
R109-112-05-KCR
R118-112-01-HCCR
R118-112-03-HCCR
R118-112-04-HCCR
R118-112-07-HCCR
R118-112-11-HCCR
R118-112-12-HCCR

2010UMWX0176

12-TA-202-1

FEMA-1604-DR-MS

1604-367

$  1,705869
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
28,691
10,000
10,000
33,821
400,902
8,082

2,237,365

148,457
33,313

181,770

841
841

21,835
21,835

954,150

186,534

62,778
1,203,462

$ 3645273



CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPL
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE A — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of Bay St.
Louis, Mississippi and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements,
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

July 22, 2013

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Couneil
City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi

agtivities, the business-type activities, each
of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi as of and for
ity of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s basic
Y22, 2013. We conducted our audit in

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the year ended September 30, 2012 which collectively comfris

General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporti

Management of City of Bay St. Loms MiSgjs respons1ble for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial repor g ing and performing our audit, we considered the City of
Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s interndh contro%over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressir g oy#opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Bay St.

Louis, Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting.

Qur consideration of infternal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financiat
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, and therefore, there can be no
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified.
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses and other
deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a materia! misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material
weaknesses 2012-1 and 2012-3.
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
We consider the deficiencies described in the accompany schedule of findings and questioned costs to be
significant deficiencies 2012-2 and 2012-4.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s financial
statements are frec of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an abjective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi in a
separate letter dated July 22, 2013,

The City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of corrective action plan. We did not audit the City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s
responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. :

nagement, City Council, others within the
d is not intended to be and should not be

This report is intended solely for the information and use of ma
entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entitie
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Wright, Ward, Hatten & Guel, PLLC
Gulfport, Mississippi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB

CIRCULAR A-133

July 22, 2013

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi

Compliance

We have audited City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 @
material effect on each of City of Bay St. Louis, Mis
September 30, 2012. City of Bay St. Louis, Missigsi
summary of auditor’s results section of the acc
Compliance with the requirements of 1oy
major federal programs is the responsifiili
responsibility is to express an opinjes
audit. 4

pi’s major federal programs for the year ended
 major federal programs are identified in the
ting schedule of findings and questioned costs.
ons, coniracts, and grants applicable to each of its
City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s management, Our
ity of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s compliance based on our

We conducted our audit of compliafige jif accordance with auditing standards generally acoepted in the
United States of America; the standard¥ applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of
Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on cach of its major federal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2012. However, the results of our auditing procedures
disclosed no instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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Internal Conirol over Commpliance

Management of City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Bay St.
Louis, Mississippi’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of infernal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identifg#all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant defici gg\z;)r material weaknesses. We did not

identify any deficiencies in internal control over compl e thit we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined ahove.

of management, City Council, others within the

This report is intended solely for the information an i
ties and is not intended to be and should not be

entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass- thr
used by anyone other than these specified Dg

Wright, Ward, Hatten & Guel, ]
Gulfport, Mississippi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH MISSISSIPPI STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

July 22, 2013

The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council

City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of tl# City of Bay St. Louis, Mississippi as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2012, and have is
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing sta \dards get @%‘ally acoepted in the United States of

As required by state legal compliance audit pr
have also performed procedures to test gemy

udit of the City’s financial statements disclosed the following
state laws and regulations. Our finding and recommendation is

The results of those procedures antkour
material instance of noncompliance w1
as follows:

Findin
Court fine recetvables are not properly maintained. We noted instances where payments and adjustments
were not reflected i individual case files, and some adjustments were made without proper

documentation and approval. We also noted that bench warrants were inconsistently issued. Also, court
assessments were overpaid because the collections were not accurately reconeiled to the general ledger.

Recommendation

We recommend that the court department review the active files monthly to ensure that each case is
reviewed and that all correspondence is documented within the files, and the court department should
consistently issue warrants for non-payment. We also recommend that management ensure that proper
procedures are in place for timely remittance of all court assessments. We recommend that court fine
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revenue is reconciled monthly from the court software system to the general ledger accounting system
and that any discrepancies are corrected immediately. A court fine receivable report should be generated
monthly and reviewed for proper finaneial reporting and collection.

Response

Management is reconciling the court assessments to the general ledger to ensure accuracy. The
overpayment occurred due to an audit adjustment entry which changed the payables balances in prior
years and was not reversed. The state assessment charges are a result of daily court deposits and each
deposit is verified as to where revenue is booked to the City or to a payables account to be sent to the
State of Mississippi.

The Court staff will improve recordkeeping in the case files to accurately record fine waivers, changes
and allowances for time served. The Court Clerk is working to issue warrants for non-payment of fines
and non-appearances in Court.

The instances of noncompliance of the prior year have been corrected by management, unless it is
specifically stated otherwise in the findings and recommendations noted above.

The Office of the State Auditor or a public accounting #irm yill review, on a subsequent year’s audit

engagement, the finding in this report to ensure that ¢ orfective

Wright, Ward, Hatten & Guel, PLLC # %
Gulfport, Mississippi
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS




CITY OF BAY ST. LOUIS, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1. Type of Auditors” Report Issued

2. Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
a. Material weakness (es) identified
b. Significant deficiency (ies) identified not considered to be
material weaknesses?

3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
4. Internal control over major programs:

a. Material weakness (es) identified?
b. Significant deficiency (ies) identified not consideredsto be
material weaknesses?

5. Type of auditors’ report issued on complian for p ajor prgrams:

6. Any audit findings disclosed that are req «:

a. 14.218 U.S. DepartmeHt of Housing and Urban Development

Community Development Block Grants —
Entitlement Grants to Cities

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:
9. Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?
10. Prior year audit findings and questioned costs relative to federal awards

which would require the auditee to prepare a summary schedule of prior?
audit findings as discussed in Section_.315 {b) of OMB Circular A-133?
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SECTION II — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2012-1: Procurement and Purchasing Prior year finding

Criteria: Proper internal controls over purchasing and accounts payable require that payments to
vendors should be made from the original invoice (not a quote or statement). To ensure that
software internal controls are utilized, the purchasing department should enter every invoice
number exactly as recorded on the invoice. Invoices should be cancelled once they are paid, by
stamping “PAID” on the original invoice to prevent duplication of payment.

Condition: We noted instances where invoices were paid twice and payments were made from
copies of invoices or from quotes.

Cause: The accounts payable department paid vendors from copies of invoices and repair orders.
It appears that invoices are inconsistently entered into the accounts payable software, and this
allows for payment of invoices that have previously been paid. A thorough review of the claims
docket was not performed to detect duplicate payments had been made.

Effect: The City can incur expenditures that are unbudgeted, unallowable or improperly
authorized from lack of following proper proc ent procedures. This also creates an

improper disbursements that could be in
dpuld be overpaid which could affect

ents should be made from original invoices, that

y arc on the invoice, and that all invoices are stamped

«QQ recommend that management scrutinize each claims
cil to avoid improper or duplicate vendor payments.

2012-2: Building Permits

Criteria: The City’s ordinance requires that all new building construction and remodels are to
have a valid building permit and if necessary, be renewed.

Condition: 'We noted inconsistent treatment regarding fee asscssments and instances where
permit fees were not assessed or waived entirely which violates the City’s ordinance. We also
noted that permit applications were incomplete and not signed by the applicant or a city official
and that files were missing documentation notating inspections.

Cause: The permit department inconsistently charges citizens for various permits, and in several
cases, no fees were charged for shed or fence permits. Fee waivers were not approved by Council.
In some cases, the permit department did not follow up on construction projects in progress, and
once completed, they did not verify that previous issues had been addressed.

#ffect: Noncompliant applicants/construction projects are in violation of the City’s ordinance,
This creates a shortfall of permit revenue because the fees are waived or not collected for some
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2012-3:

projects. The City is incurring personnel costs because they are required to inspect all projects,
but they are receiving no revenue for these particular projects. In some cases, building projects
may be non-compliant due to lack of follow-up, lack of final inspections, and lack of certificates
of occupancy.

Recommendation: We recommend that all building projects have a compléted and signed
application on file with all applicable fees assessed and collected. If maanagement determines that
a wavier is appropriate, it should be approved by the Council and documented within the minutes.
The City should maintain a listing of open permits and timely review the list to ensure that all
applicants are paying renewal fees every six months and that follow-up and final inspections are
compieted.

Court Fines and Related Assessments

Criteria:  Proper accounting for court fine revenue is required to accurately determine court
assessments and cowrt fine receivables for each court case. The court department is required to
accurately account for and record court fine receivables. The City is required to submit monthly
court assessments to various agencies within the City and the State to determine the amount of
assessments due.

Condition: Court fine receivables are not poﬁgérl “ygnaintained. We noted instances where
payments and adjustments were not reflected i# individuakcase files, and some adjustments were
made without proper documentation and ap) . We also noted that bench warrants were
inconsistently issued. Also, court assesg re overpaid because the collections were not

accurately reconciled to the general ledge

Cause: The City’s court depa feemot following up on offender’s payments, nor or they

properly documenting pa 2 flentsandigorrespondence. The department is making modifications to
some records, and they areé ot getfing management approval, Management is not reconciling the
court assessment reports to thégeheral ledger to ensure accuracy.

Effect: Inadequate review of receivables can result in noncompliance with State laws and
inaccurate court fine receivables which could cause inaccuracies within the City’s financial
statements. Overpayment of court assessments decreases the amount of cash available for the
City to utilize for legitimate expenditurcs.

Recommendation. We recommend that the court department review the active files monthly to
ensure that each case is reviewed and that all correspondence is documented within the files, and
the court department should consistently issue warrants for non-payment. We also recommend
that management ensure that proper procedures are in place for timely remittance of all court
assessments. We recommend that court fine revenue is reconciled monthly from the court
software system to the general ledger accounting system and that any discrepancies are corrected
immediately. A court fine receivable report should be generated monthly and reviewed for
proper financial reporting and collection.
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2012-4: Rental of City Facilities

Criteria: The City should implement policies and procedures to ensure that deposits are
consistently collected in a timely manner and determine before rental date that deposits paid by
check have funds that are available, The City should also develop a written cancellation policy
for all rental facilities and adhere to such policy. The City should also restrict access into all
rental facilities for the limited period of rental time.

Condition: We noted that deposits were not collected for all events, and in some cases deposits
and payments made to the City did not have time to clear the issuer’s bank to ensure that the
funds were available. The City also lacks a written cancellation policy for all rental facilities.
Also as noted, the City has allowed renters to keep the keys to the facility for several days;
therefore, allowing renters unlimited access.

Cause: The City’s rental manager inconsistently charges renters a deposit fee. Deposit fees
ensure proper clean up by the renter and restitution for possible damages. Also, it appears that
there were inconsistencies regarding hours charged for usage of the facilities, and it was noted
that renters were keeping the keys to the facilities beyond the rental period, allowing unlimited
access.

hours of usage, the City has a loss of rev
allowing renters to keep the keys for anjifag]

SECTION I - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There are no federal awards findings for the year ended September 30, 2012.
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN AND
SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS




A PLACE APART

Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Section 2: Financial Statement Findings
Finding 2612-1: Prior year finding

Condition: We noted instances where invoices were paid twice and payments were made from
copies of invoices or from quotes.

Corrective Action: The one significant duplicate payment resulted from an insurance invoice
being received from both the underwriting company and the insurance broker, This was
identified and the City was reimbursed in full for the dyplicate payment amount. A review of the
claims docket is performed to detect duplicate paymesfis and errors.

Finding 2012-2:;

Condition: We noted inconsistent tre
permit fees were not assessed or waiv
noted that permit applications w

irely Which violates the City’s ordinance. We also
te and not signed by the applicant or a city official

Corrective Action: One r oject was not assessed a building permit fee because it is a
Federally Funded project which #id not include a budget for permits. It has been a long time

practice of the City of Bay Saint Louis not to charge government entities when grant funded
projects did not include permit fees. Management feels changing the ordinance to assess a fee to
cover the cost of the inspections but waive permit fees for large federally funded government
projects may be something for the City Council to consider.

Commercial permit fee processes are being reviewed and changed to standardize the fee
calculation and remove the current process which involves manually calculating permit fee based
on numerous variables within the projeet.

City management will ensure that the Building Department continues to improve recordkeeping,.
Charges for shed and fence permits will be reviewed with the building department staff.

Finding 2012-3:

Condition:  Court fine receivables are not properly maintained. We noted nstances where
payments and adjustments were not reflected on individual case files, and some adjustments were
made without proper documentation and approval. . We also noted that bench warrants were
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inconsistently issued. Also, court assessments were overpaid because the collections were not
accurately reconciled to the general ledger.

Corrective Action: Management is reconciling the court assessments to the general ledger to
ensure accuracy. The overpayment occurred due to an audit adjustment entry which changed the
payables balances in prior years and was ot reversed. The state assessment charges are a result
of daily court deposits and each deposit is verified as to where revenue is booked to the City or to
a payables account to be sent to the State of Mississippi.

The Court staff will improve recordkeeping in the case files to accurately record fine waivers,
changes and allowances for time served. The Court Clerk is working to issue warrants for non-
payment of fines and non-appearances in Court.

Finding 2012-4;

Condition: We noted that deposits were not collected for all events, and in some cases deposits
and payments made to the City did not have time to clear the issuer’s bank to ensure that the
funds were available. The City also lacks a written cancellation policy for all rentat facilities.
Also as noted, the City has allowed renters to keep the keys to the facility for several days;
therefore, allowing a renter unlimited access.
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A PLACE APART

Summary.of Prior Year Audit Findings
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Finding Number Prior Year Finding
2011-6 Improper Cash Management

Condition; During testing of certain federally funded j2
agencies were not timely deposited into the City’s depositdt

Eots we noted that receipts from granting

fiely deposited into the City’s proper depository
ment Block Grant vendor invoices be submitted

Recommendation: We recommend that all receipts
account. We also recommend that Community
for Council approval for payment simultancously
received the invoices can be paid immedjafelys

L projects had advance payments sent to the City prior to
bold the checks until three days prior to making payment to be
burse finds within three days of receipt.

Corrective Action; Various federats
mvoicing by contractors. The City
n compliance with the requirement to'

" The process of funding projects has changed to submit cash requests for reimbursement rather than
receiving advance payments. Most of the projects have closed out and are complete. The City is not
holding any advance payments for any projects.
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